#### **POLICY BRIEF**

CLIMATE CHANGE AND SEXUAL AND REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH RIGHTS (SRHR) EDUCATION: INFORMATION FOR POLICYMAKERS

©Share-Net Bangladesh, March 2023

PUBLISHED BY Share-Net Bangladesh

#### PREPARED BY

Nazneen I. Khan Researcher, International Center for Climate Change and Development (ICCCAD)



PHOTOGRAPHY

Dr. Nazneen I. Khan is an interdisciplinary global development researcher with particular interests in the relationships between civil society, climate change, and development in South Asia. Being a Political Scientist with over 20 years of experience she runs several projects in Bangladesh and South Asia. Her current work focuses on gender, climate change, non-economic loss, and damage and development settings on young people, especially women, and girls. Dr. Khan also Co-coordinates the Climate Change and Health program at ICCCAD (www.icccad.org), a research, innovation, and learning program to support the safer and more effective engagement of women and girls who are most impacted by the vulnerabilities of climate change in Bangladesh. She is a Guest lecturer in the Climate Change and Development (CCD) Master's Program at the Independent University, Bangladesh.

POLICY BRIEF: CLIMATE CHANGE AND SEXUAL AND REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH RIGHTS (SRHR) EDUCATION: INFORMATION FOR POLICYMAKERS

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS	VII
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	IX
1. ABOUT ICCCAD	11
1.1. ABOUT SHERE-NET BANGLADESH (SNBD)	11
1.2. WHAT IS SHIRIM?	12
1.3. THE SHIRIM OBJECTIVES	12
2. WOMEN, CLIMATE CHANGE, AND SRHR:	13
2.1. CLIMATE CHANGE	13
2.2. SRHR	13
2.3. WHY DO WE NEED GENDER-RESPONSIVE CLIMATE ACTION?	14
2.4. WHY DO WE NEED INFORMATION ON CLIMATE CHANGE (CC) AND SEXUAL AND	
REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH RIGHTS (SRHR) EDUCATION?	15
2.5. KEY OBJECTIVES	16
2.6. KEY FUNCTIONS	16
2.7. INCORPORATE SRHR INTO CC DISCOURSE	17
2.8. SRHR: SOME FACTS	18
2.9. GOVERNMENT CLIMATE POLICY IN BANGLADESH	19
2.10. GOVERNMENT POLICY/SERVICE PLAN FOR SRHR	20
2.11. ACCESS TO SRHR IN BANGLADESH	21
3. RECOMMENDATION	23
4. CONCLUSION	26
ANNEX: RESOURCES	27

POLICY BRIEF: CLIMATE CHANGE AND SEXUAL AND REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH RIGHTS (SRHR) EDUCATION: INFORMATION FOR POLICYMAKERS

# ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

BCCSAP: Bangladesh Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan CBO: Community-Based Organization CC: Climate Change CESCR: Committee on Economic, Social, and Cultural Rights CRF: Climate-related event COP: Conference of the Parties CSO Civil Society Organization CEDAW: Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of **Discrimination Against Women GBV:** Gender-based Violence GGCA: Global Gender and Climate Alliance IPCC: Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change NAPA: National Adaptation Programme of Action **NEP: National Environment Policy** NHP: National Health Policy NPDM: National Plan for Disaster Management NWDP: National Women's Development Policy NCCC: National Climate Change Commission NAP: National Action Plan OHCHR: Office of the High Commissioner for Human Rights SHIRIM: Share-Net International Rapid Improvement Model

SNBD: Share-Net Bangladesh

SRHR: Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights

UNFCCC: United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change

WGC: Women & Gender Constituency

**RR:** Reproductive Rights

UNDP: United Nations Development Programme

UNFCCC: United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change

## **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

The International Centre for Climate Change and Development (ICCCAD) is one of the leading research and capacity-building organizations working on climate change and development in Bangladesh. ICCCAD's mission is to generate and disseminate knowledge on climate change with specific attention to capacitate future leaders on climate adaptation and development issues. ICCCAD provides capacity building, policy support, and knowledge management services in areas such as loss and damage, climate finance, SDGs, adaptation, LLA, NBS, and migration. By focusing on such work in Bangladesh, ICCCAD allows international participants to gain direct knowledge of the issues in a real-world context. Through the expertise of ICCCAD and its local partners, international organizations will be exposed to relevant and grounded knowledge that can be shared and transmitted around the world for the benefit of other LDCs, and their governments, donors, and international NGOs.

## "Women hold up half the sky, there is no way you can manage change climate which is the sky, without women."

- CHINESE PHRASE

## **1. ABOUT ICCCAD**

The International Centre for Climate Change and Development (ICCCAD) is one of the leading research and capacity-building organizations working on climate change and development in Bangladesh. ICCCAD's mission is to generate and disseminate knowledge on climate change with specific attention to capacitate future leaders on climate adaptation and development issues. ICCCAD provides capacity building, policy support, and knowledge management services in areas such as loss and damage, climate finance, SDGs, adaptation, LLA, NBS, and migration. By focusing on such work in Bangladesh, ICCCAD allows international participants to gain direct knowledge of the issues in a real-world context. Through the expertise of ICCCAD and its local partners, international organizations will be exposed to relevant and grounded knowledge that can be shared and transmitted around the world for the benefit of other LDCs, and their governments, donors, and international NGOs.

## 1.1. ABOUT SHERE-NET BANGLADESH (SNBD)

Share-Net Bangladesh is the country hub of Share-Net International, a Knowledge Platform focusing on Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights (SRHR). Share-Net Bangladesh is the first of Share-Net International's country hub, drawing on the years of experiences and interventions by practitioners, researchers, and policymakers in the field of sexual reproductive health, especially placing SRHR at the center of human rights. Share-Net Bangladesh aims to bring together the Communities of Practice (CoP) that consist of social and medical researchers, development practitioners, health workers, government officials, and legal experts to engage with one another to find solutions and take critical issues forward. Share-Net Bangladesh is hosted by RedOrange Communications.

#### 1.2. WHAT IS SHIRIM?

Share-Net Bangladesh is the first of Share-Net International's country hubs, drawing on the years of experiences and interventions by practitioners, researchers, and policymakers in the field of sexual reproductive health, especially placing SRHR at the Centre of human rights. This policy brief has been developed for the knowledge product 'Need Assessment' under the Share-Net International Rapid Improvement Model (SHIRIM) connected to the theme "Climate change and SRHR education and information for policymakers." Share-Net International Rapid Improvement Model (SHIRIM) aims to contribute to a better understanding of which strategies can be used effectively by the policymakers to successfully move newly acquired knowledge towards policy, influencing and improving practice. This model uses the collaborative approach as a structured learning system to facilitate collaboration between the country nodes and to stimulate sharing of experiences and knowledge.

### **1.3. THE SHIRIM OBJECTIVES**

- Exploring different strategies that effectively influence the complex processes by which evidence informs policy.
- Improving understanding of which strategies contribute to successful knowledge translation and use in the specific context of each Share-Net Country Node.
- Facilitating learning, collaboration, and exchange between Share-Net Country Nodes.
- Developing capacity of participating staff from the Share-Net Country Nodes secretariats concerning knowledge brokering.
- Sharing and applying knowledge about the most effective strategies that contribute to successful knowledge translation and use in the specific context.
- Sustaining strategies and approaches that contribute to successful knowledge translation and use.

## 2. WOMEN, CLIMATE CHANGE, AND SRHR:

The risk of climate change disasters and their impact on local people is increasingly determined by health, economic, and security inequalities. These inequalities are gendered and intersectional-specific. Despite expanding research on the economic, social, and health effects of climate change on women, only two governments (Liberia and Peru) have special legislation addressing the nexus of climate change and gender. In terms of sexual and reproductive health care, rights, and services, none of the 190 INDCs examined by the WGC included the right to access sexual and reproductive health services in the aftermath of climate change and climate change-related catastrophes.

#### 2.1. CLIMATE CHANGE

For the first time, the IPCC's Sixth Assessment Report provides a more detailed regional assessment of climate change, including a focus on useful information that can inform risk assessment, adaptation, and other decision-making, and a new framework that helps translate physical changes in the climate – heat, cold, rain, drought, snow, wind, coastal flooding and more – into what they mean for society and ecosystems.

#### 2.2. SRHR

Defined at ICPD as "certain human rights that are already recognized in national laws, international human rights documents, and other consensus documents. These rights rest on the recognition of the basic right of all couples and individuals to decide freely and responsibly the number, spacing, and timing of their children and to have the information and means to do so, and the right to attain the highest standard of sexual and reproductive health. It also includes their right to make decisions concerning reproduction free of discrimination, coercion, and violence, as expressed in human rights documents".

The Guttmacher-Lancet Commission on Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights defines SRHR as "a state of physical, emotional, mental and social well-being about all aspects of sexuality and reproduction, not merely the absence of disease, dysfunction, or infirmity. Therefore, a positive approach to sexuality and reproduction should recognize the part played by pleasurable sexual relationships, trust, and communication in promoting self-esteem and overall wellbeing. All individuals have a right to make decisions governing their bodies and to access services that support that right. Achieving sexual and reproductive health relies on realizing sexual and reproductive rights, which are based on the human multiple rights of all individuals: including the right to life, the right to be free from torture, the right to health, the right to privacy, the right to education, and the prohibition of discrimination.

#### 2.3. WHY DO WE NEED GENDER-RESPONSIVE CLIMATE ACTION?

The impacts of climate change have a detrimental direct and indirect effect on an individual's SRHR. Climate change directly impacts sexual and reproductive health (SRH) among girls and women. SRH, according to the Guttmacher-Lancet Commission, refers to "the state of physical, emotional, mental and social well-being in relation to sexuality and reproduction".

National Learning Sessions 1 and 2, by SNBD reports, highlighted specific findings and make relevant recommendations to decision-makers and advocates to generate effective, rights-based policies and programs across sectors, including:

- 1. Enhancing partnerships among various actors working on climate change, health, and women's rights.
- 2. Financing in capacity building to fill evidence gaps and integrate the analysis of SRHR and climate data.
- 3. Advocating a gender-transformative climate action plan that addresses the linkages between climate change and SRHR.
- 4. Supporting health systems especially on SRHR to address the underlying causes of vulnerability to climate change.
- 5. Understanding how intensifying emergencies and intersecting identities influence vulnerability and resilience to climate change and SRHR to make sure climate actions do not impair inequalities.

#### 2.4. WHY DO WE NEED INFORMATION ON CLIMATE CHANGE (CC) AND SEXUAL AND REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH RIGHTS (SRHR) EDUCATION?

Inadequate access to SRHR services increases women's risk of physical, mental, and psychological harm; it also impacts their ability to build capacity and resilience to climate change. Providing people with knowledge about climate change and how it relates to their health is part of empowering and equipping them to be active in the response that climate change requires. This policy brief helps the policymakers explain climate change and how it links to gender and sexual and reproductive health and rights.

This knowledge product provides an overview of how SRHR can be integrated into national plans to adapt to climate change and its goal is to achieve gender equality. It also aims to promote an integrated and inclusive approach that moves countries forward on the mutually supportive objectives of resilience to climate change and the realization of SRHR. Evidence shows that climate funders and policymakers have not integrated sexual and reproductive health and rights (SRHR) within their strategies.

The main objectives of this policy brief are to support more SRHR organizations and advocates to engage in climate change advocacy to develop stronger partnerships with those already working on the connections between climate change and SRHR.

This policy brief will help:

- 1. To ensure climate policies at the national and international levels, will better support and promote SRHR.
- 2. To ensure funding for SRHR is expressly eligible under climate funding mechanisms.
- 3. To mobilize new allies and alliances between organizations and specific sectors.

The fact is international and national climate policies do not effectively mainstream gender-specific requirements into their frameworks. SRHR services are, therefore, excluded from all level frameworks and it is a continuation of reproductive injustice.

#### 2.5. KEY OBJECTIVES

- 1. Understanding SRHR from a Climate Change perspective and the scope of policy and legislation
- 2. Framework for National Action Plan linking for climate change and SRHR for policymakers

#### 2.6. KEY FUNCTIONS

• Establishing connections with key local, national, and global partners, and stakeholders to build a network of, those who are working on SRHR and CC.

- Generating knowledge to address priority research and intervention gaps on SRHR and CC.
- Disseminating knowledge and ideas through effective communication tools.
- Finding solutions by creating space and supporting advocacy.
- Enabling the gap between all involved in SRHR policy, services related, and CC related.
- Using and sharing existing SRHR and CC knowledge

#### 2.7. INCORPORATE SRHR INTO CC DISCOURSE

If we are to effectively integrate SRHR into the climate discourse, we need each of us in our community to consider how we can best support a collective approach.

These are merely a handful of potential ways to do so:

- Seek changes to national plans and elevate reproductive choice as relevant to climate change adaptation and resilience within the national discourse. Some civil society organizations, specializing in climate and environment, provide technical advice to governments and climate negotiators.
- Seek changes in UNFCCC policies and processes, as well as at other international fora.
- Persuade donors to make such work expressly eligible under climate funding mechanisms.
- Use (or generate) programmatic data to further the evidence base of the connections between sexual and reproductive health and climate change

#### 2.8. SRHR: SOME FACTS

Women's sexual and reproductive health is related to multiple human rights, including the right to life, the right to be free from torture, the right to health, the right to privacy, the right to education, and the prohibition of discrimination. The Committee on Economic, Social, and Cultural Rights (CESCR) and the Committee on the Elimination of Discrimination against Women (CEDAW) have both indicated that women's right to health includes their sexual and reproductive health.

This means that States have obligations to respect, protect and fulfill rights related to women's sexual and reproductive health, therefore, women are entitled to reproductive health care services, and goods and facilities that are:

CEDAW (article 16) guarantees women equal rights in deciding "freely and responsibly on the number and spacing of their children and to have access to the information, education and means to enable them to exercise these rights."

CEDAW (article 10) also specifies that women's right to education includes "access to specific educational information to help to ensure the health and well-being of families, including information and advice on family planning."

The Beijing Platform for Action states that "the human rights of women include their right to have control over and decide freely and responsibly on matters related to their sexuality, including sexual and reproductive health, free of coercion, discrimination, and violence."

The CESCR General Comment 22 recommends States "repeal or eliminate laws, policies, and practices that criminalize, obstruct or undermine access by individuals or a particular group to sexual and reproductive health facilities, services, goods, and information." Human rights standards in this area are summarized in the OHCHR information series on sexual and reproductive health and rights.

## 2.9. GOVERNMENT CLIMATE POLICY IN BANGLADESH

Bangladesh has ratified several international frameworks including the UNFCCC, Kyoto Protocol, and the 2015 Paris agreement (Climate Centre, 2021). Bangladesh has also developed a national biodiversity strategy and a National Adaptation Programme for Action (NAPA) in addition to these ratifications. In 2008, many of the strategies of the NAPA were adopted into the Bangladesh Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan (BCCSAP)—a cross-sectoral 10-year program (2009-2019) to build resilience to climate change impacts.

Climate change is a centrepiece of the recently adopted Bangladesh Delta Plan 2100 lays out a 100-year roadmap for achieving sustainable growth through an adaptive delta management process. The Mujib Climate Prosperity Plan, under finalization, leverages the Eighth Five Year Plan 2021-2025 of Bangladesh, Vision 2041, and Bangladesh Delta Plan 2100 to unlock a pathway for the fast-tracked delivery of Bangladesh's Sustainable Development Goals by 2030. It also builds on synergies with the Bangladesh Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan, National Adaptation Plan, and Nationally Determined Contributions submitted in 2020. Meaningful citizen engagement and locally led climate actions are a cornerstone of this Plan and are envisioned as a transformative pathway to addressing the country's critical climate challenges.

National Action Plan (NAP) for climate policies plays a key role in determining responses to climate change, including plans to build adaptive capacity and resilience. An evaluation of NAP and its climate policies with a specific focus on health, including sexual and reproductive health and rights (SRHR) issues, can provide important information on gaps and areas of potential improvement to ensure healthy and resilient communities.

In the two last decades, there has been a growing interest in the field of sexual and reproductive health and rights. SRHR has been prioritized in the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs 3, 4, and 5) which are committed to "leaving no one behind". The importance of leaving no one behind is the key to Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). However, people who lack reproductive choice are already being left behind.

#### 2.10. GOVERNMENT POLICY/SERVICE PLAN FOR SRHR

Bangladesh government had formulated the National Strategy for Adolescent Health 2017-2030 and is currently finalizing the Plan of Action. The government has also developed some communication tools targeting adolescents, and these can benefit non-government initiatives as well. The government also developed a website (adoinfobd.com), where adolescents will gain information about SRHR issues. On the other hand, the government has also developed an adolescent SRHR networking forum to connect all relevant stakeholders. MOWCA is establishing 4883 adolescent clubs all over the country which will cover almost 4,39,470 adolescents, with each club consisting of 20 girls and 10 boys. Apart from providing them with training on various skills, the department is also making them aware of SRHR and gender-based violence. The government is also planning to appoint one psychologist per secondary school to address this challenge. The government is proactive and positive about achieving SRHRrelated goals, as it is directly linked to the SDGs.

#### 2.11. ACCESS TO SRHR IN BANGLADESH

Bangladesh is ranked 162 out of 181 nations in the Notre Dame Global Adaptation Initiative, which measures a country's vulnerability to climate change and other global challenges combined with its potential to enhance resilience. For Bangladeshi women, availability, and access to SRHR and services are often limited, and during climate disasters, these services almost become inadequate. In the absence of national frameworks and policies addressing SRHR services, it is necessary to understand whether key actors are responding and addressing the vulnerabilities women face during and post-disaster or in any emergency. It is important to identify that discussions around SRHR are private, stressful, and uncomfortable in our society.

#### 2.11.1. INFRASTRUCTURE & ACCESS TO RECOURSE

Infrastructure and access to resources have a big role to play in how women are impacted by climate change. Women suffer more during disasters and are displaced. The socio-cultural norms mostly limit women's accessibility during times of disaster or post-disaster situations.

Older women and pregnant women are at risk of death and injury during disasters. Our cyclone shelters are not gender-neutral. Most of the shelter centers are not usually women-friendly. However, the stairs are reportedly steep and unfriendly for elderly women, children, disabled women, and pregnant women. Almost no cyclone shelter has a ramp to safely carry disabled persons and pregnant women or a sufficient support system. Necessary SRH services, hygiene products, and supplies are not just constrained but unavailable during disasters. There are data gaps on post disaster situation of the women who experienced the situation as mentioned here.

#### 2.11.2. GENDER-BASED VIOLENCE OR ABUSE

Women are more likely to become victims of GBV right after any disaster occurs. Eco anxiety and stress is likely to be heightened after disasters, particularly when families are displaced and have to live in emergency settings or transitional shelter place. Overcapacity, the collapse of regular routines and livelihood patterns, unusual living, and privacy issues can contribute to temper loss, frustration, and violence, with children and women most vulnerable. It is crucial to understand the local cultures and the social contexts that exist in Bangladesh. Many people could not understand the exact terms, SRH and SRHR (in Bengali also). An understanding of gender sensitivities as well as SRHR issues need to be ensured as a willingness to talk about these issues although they are sensitive subjects.

Evidence on the SRH beliefs, practices, needs, service-seeking behavior, and service utilization-related barriers experienced by young males in Bangladesh is also extremely limited. There is a culture of silence around discussion on SRHR in Bangladesh which largely stems from shame, stigma, and taboo associated with SRH. This is a trend in South Asia, where knowledge of SRHR is highly reported, but details of SRH processes are limited. These challenges highlight the deeply gendered cultural norms and beliefs associated with sex and sexuality in our societies.

There is a gap identified in different areas,

- 1. Gap Identified Corrective actions.
- 2. Gaps in the assessment phase
- 3. Gaps in the design
- 4. Gaps in implementation
- 5. Gaps in response monitoring

### **3. RECOMMENDATION**

To step up improvement and lower the impact of climaterelated disasters on women and girls, this brief offers the following recommendations:

- Eradicate all forms of social, political, and economic barriers which is the cause or increase in women's vulnerability to the impact of climate change on women's SRH.
- Incorporate gender assessments, evaluation, analysis, and gender equality indicators into mitigation and adaptation strategy to identify where specific existing vulnerabilities to climate change, are and where opportunities for mitigating and adapting to climate change can be found.
- Need to offer multiple roles and responsibilities to be given to women to organize separate disaster risk management consultations and planning especially in the SRH framework.
- Ensure existing policy coherence between government policies and commitments to SRHR, equal opportunity for men and women, and climate change plans and budgets.
- Ensure the participation of women in disaster risk reduction management, including in the planning, implementation and monitoring, and evaluation processes.
- Develop a gender-specific strategy plan for SRHR, including resource needs and monitoring tools.
- Review and strengthen NAPs to include SRHR, including integration into adaptation and disaster responses.

- Build the capacity of government bodies leading on climate change to integrate gender analysis, tools for mainstreaming, indicators, and best practices into their work.
- Loss and damage assessments must go beyond using an economic lens and include a broader social perspective that considers and responds to gender inequalities that exist in SRH and to the different roles played by men and women.
- Conduct comprehensive assessments on the effect of climate change on women's health, including their sexual and reproductive health.
- Create mechanisms that guarantee women's equal access to negotiating, developing, managing, and implementing adaptation and mitigation financing.

Various steps should be taken to mitigate the harms of disrupted access to sexual and reproductive healthcare and services because of emergency settings and prolonged crises and to proactively prepare and respond to future issues.

- 1. There is a need to integrate and provide coherence among the various policies that have incorporated gender mainstreaming exist in insolation.
- 2. Existing policies and programs, need to be implemented through the proper allocation of human and financial resources.
- To establish the SRHR within the context of climate change, it is also important for governments to recognize, implement and deliver on the commitments already made.

- 4. Government should improve the overall data collection and management system.
- 5. Responding to the sexual and reproductive health needs of persons with a mental or physical disability.
- Donors of SRHR initiatives could also support an electronic library where civil society organizations could present their work and publish their reports to make them more accessible for researchers as well as the public and policymakers.
- 7. Individuals disproportionately impacted by the effects of natural disasters and crises should be represented and centered in policy spaces.
- 8. We need to prepare a national SRHR Index to analyze health policies, programming, and funding streams and generate grades that compare what is being done with what can and should be done to promote SRHR within government health assistance.

## 4. CONCLUSION

Bangladesh's government can play a catalytic role in effective climate mitigation and adaptation. However, a lack of prioritization has resulted in minimal SRHR service availability in Bangladesh. This has rendered in a lack of climate policy addressing SRHR. Although recommendations to include women in disaster risk reduction management planning were made, there is no element of how the government intends to do this. Many of the reports and available data analyzed were economic development, recovery, or relief-based responses to climate-related catastrophes.

This Policy brief confirmed that climate change negatively impacts almost all SRHR outcomes and leaves vulnerable women and girls at higher risk of being left behind. More collaboration between the IPCC, government bodies, Go, NGOs, and local women's groups is crucial.

Women in Bangladesh are most likely to be affected by climate change-related emergencies and already experience high levels of gender inequality. There is an urgent need for national frameworks concerning climate change to take up the issue of SRHR to facilitate discussion and inclusion of the reproductive justice framework at the national level.

Those who work in SRHR are already working on climate change. This policy brief aims to suggest some further meaningful actions which build on education and information on SRHR and CC. It was designed to be used by decisionmakers and climate change, humanitarian, and gender equality advocates to better understand the linkages between sectors and align efforts to generate effective policies and programs.

### **ANNEX: RESOURCES**

<u>Climate-Change-and-SRHR-Scoping-Study Working-</u> <u>Paper\_2014.pdf</u>

- Damavandi, S., (2022). The Critical Importance of Sexual and Reproductive Healthcare During Emergency Settings: Recommendations for the U.S. Government and Global Humanitarian Organizations. Washington D.C.: International Center for Research on Women.
- <u>United Nations Population Fund. (July 2021). Sexual and</u> <u>Reproductive Health and Rights in National Climate Policy:</u> <u>A Review of 50 Nationally Determined Contribution</u> <u>Documents.</u>
- Women Deliver. (February 2021). Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights in National Adaptation Plan (NAP) Processes: Exploring a pathway for realizing rights and resilience to climate change.
- Women Deliver. (January 2021). The Link Between Climate Change and Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights: An Evidence Review.

https://seors.unfccc.int

#### **Related Resources**

- Toolkit for a Gender-Responsive Process to Formulate and Implement National Adaptation Plans (NAPs)
- Advancing Gender-Responsive Climate Action Through National Adaptation Plan (NAP) Processes | NAP Global Network Synthesis Report, 2019–2020

#### LIST OF REFERENCES

- Ahmed, F.R.S., (2012), Climate Change Issues in Bangladesh & Need for Adaptation to Climate Change, Palli Karma Sahayak Foundation (PKSF)
- Asian-Pacific Resource and Research Center for Women (2014), Identifying Opportunities for Action on Climate Change and Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights in Bangladesh, Indonesia, and the Philippines, Arrow Working Papers,
- Brody, A., Demetriades, J. & Esplen, E. (2008) Gender and Climate Change, Mapping the Linkages: A Scoping Study on Knowledge and Gaps, BRIDGE, Institute of Development Studies, University of Sussex,
- Government of Bangladesh, National Health Policy (2011): The committee was formed in 1996 and the National Healthy Policy was finally published in 2011 to modernize the health sector and ensure the mental, physical, and social well-being of all individuals.
- Government of Bangladesh, National Plan for Disaster Management (NPDM) 2010-2015: This plan was developed as an outcome of national and international commitments of the Government of Bangladesh and the Disaster Management and Relief Division for addressing the disaster risks comprehensively to reduce the vulnerability of the poor to the effects of natural, environmental and human-induced hazards to a manageable and acceptable humanitarian level.
- Government of Bangladesh, National Women Development Policy (2011): This was formulated in 2011 after the revival of the 1997 Women Development Policy and it seeks to provide women with full control over their right to land, earned property, health, education, training, information, inheritance, credit, technology and opportunity to earn.

<u>Habtezion, S. (2013) Overview of Linkages Between</u> <u>Gender and Climate Change, Policy Brief, United Nations</u> <u>Development Programme (UNDP),</u>

- PB1-AP-Overview-Gender-and-climate-change.pdf
- Institute of Development Studies. (2008). Gender and Climate Change: Mapping the Linkages, A Scoping Study on Knowledge and Gaps,
- Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). (2007), Climate Change 2007: Synthesis Report. Contribution of Working Groups I, II, and III to the IPCC Fourth Assessment Report,
- Sharmin, Z. & Islam, M.S. (2013) Consequences of Climate Change and Gender Vulnerability: Bangladesh Perspective, Bangladesh Development Research Working Paper Series 16, Bangladesh Development Research Centre (BDRC),
- World Health Organization (WHO). (2010). Gender, Climate Change, and Health Draft Discussion Paper,
- Alston, M. (2013). "Introducing gender and climate change," in Research, Action, and Policy, eds M. Alston and K. Whittenbury (Dordrecht: Springer Netherlands).
- ARROW (2014). Identifying Opportunities for Action on Climate Change and Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights in Bangladesh, Indonesia, and the Philippines. Asian-Pacific Resource and Research Centre for Women.
- Denton, F. (2002). Climate change vulnerability, impacts, and adaptation. Gend. Dev. 10, 10–20. doi: 10.1080/13552070215903

PubMed Abstract | CrossRef Full Text | Google Scholar

- Ferdaush, J., and Rahman, K. M. (2011). Gender Inequality in Bangladesh. Unnayan Onneshan-The Innovators.
- Flavell, J. (2020). From Gender Blind to Gender Bind: Political Strategies of the Women and Gender Constituency of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change [Thesis].
- Hashim, J. H., and Hashim, Z. (2015). Climate change, extreme weather events, and human health implications in the Asia Pacific region. Asia Pacific J Public Health. 28, 8S14S. doi: 10.1177/1010539515599030 PubMed Abstract | CrossRef Full Text |
- Kronsell, A. (2019). "The contribution of feminist perspectives to climate governance," in Understanding Climate Change through Gender Relations, eds S. Buckingham and V. Masson (Routledge)
- MoEF Bangladesh (2009). Bangladesh Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan. Government of Bangladesh.
- Nasreen, M., Azad, A., Hasan, K., and Hossain, K. (2017). Sexual and Reproductive Health During Emergencies. Institute of Disaster Management and Vulnerability Studies.
- Neelormi S., Adri N., & Ahmed A.U.Gender dimensions of differential health effects of climate change induced water-logging: A case study from coastal Bangladesh. IOP Conference Series: Earth and Environmental Science, 2009, Vol 6.
- Notre Dame Global Adaptation Initiative (2021). Country Index. The University of Notre Dame. Available <u>online</u>

- Shabib, D., and Khan, S. (2014). Gender-sensitive adaptation policymaking in Bangladesh. Climate Dev. 6, 329–335. doi: 10.1080/17565529.2014.951017 CrossRef Full Text |
- SisterSong (2014). Reproductive Justice. Sister Song. Available <u>online</u>.
- Starrs, A. M., Ezeh, A. C., Barker, G., Basu, A., Bertrand, J.
  T., Blum, R., et al. (2018). Accelerate progress-sexual and reproductive health and rights for all: report of the Guttmacher- Lancet Commission. Lancet. 391, 2642–2692. doi: 10.1016/s0140-6736(18)30293-9

PubMed Abstract | CrossRef Full Text |

- WEDO (2016). Research Paper- Gender and Climate Change. Available <u>online</u>
- WHO (2014). Whom Guidance to Protect Health From Climate Change Through Health Adaptation Planning. World Health Organization.
- WHO (2021). Abortion Policy Landscape- Bangladesh. World Health Organisation South-East Asia.
- Women Deliver. (2020). The Link Between Climate Change and Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights. Women Deliver. Available <u>online</u>

https://www.frontiersin.org

Climate Change and-SRHR

#### www.ghspjournal.org

Neelormi S., Adri N., & Ahmed A.U.Gender dimensions of differential health effects of climate change induced water-logging: A case study from coastal Bangladesh. IOP Conference Series: Earth and Environmental Science, 2009, Vol 6.

POLICY BRIEF: CLIMATE CHANGE AND SEXUAL AND REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH RIGHTS (SRHR) EDUCATION: INFORMATION FOR POLICYMAKERS



www.share-netbangladesh.org